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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Harbourton is a tiny, largely unchanged, "cross-roads" vil-
lage, consisting of a former general store, a church, a for-
mer inn and two residences. The district begins at a point
approximately 259 feet northeast of the junction of the
Harbourton/Rocktown and Harbourton/Mt. Airy Roads and extends
approximately 600 feet to the southwest of that junction. It
embraces properties with a depth of approximately .300 feet
along the northwest side of the Harbourton/Rocktown Road and
100 feet along the southeast side. The buildings included
within the district range in date from the third quarter of
the eighteenth century to the mid-nineteenth century. They
include:

1) The Hakbourton Store. Now a residence, this served as

a country store from 1768-1962. From the Civil War to the
late 1950's, it also contained a Post Office facility. Many
of the store ledgers and postal records are still preserved
in the possession of the current owners.

The building was constructed in three phases, the old-
est part being the stone section at the intersection of the
two roads. It is dated 1768 by a datestone in the west gable.
One-and-a-half stories high, its walls are constructed of
rubble fieldstone. There is a central door in the facade,
flanked by windows in which Victorian sash have been inserted.
There are:three irregularly placed segmentally-arched openings
in the west gable. The original door in this wall leads to
the cellar, evidently the original kitchen, for its most
striking feature is an enormous in-wall fireplace, of stone
with @ak lintel. Corbelled masonry at:the left end of this
construction once supported a corner fireplace in the room
above. The fireplace itself has been removed. Above the
single room on the ground floor is an attic with heavy hand-
hewn rafters. Here it can be observed that the wood shingle
roo§ remains in place beneath the modern roofing.

- Behind this one-room house is a shed kitchen constructed
of clapboard with clay and straw infilled walls. In the
west end is a huge cooking fireplace of stone, bearing
traces of a sherical stone oven, which once extended as a
beehive beyond the exterior wall. The beams of the ceiling,
now exposed, are hung from the rafters in an unusual con-
struction method.

Sometime after construction of the store, probably in
the last quarter of the eighteenth century, on the basis of
construction methods, a modest two-bay wooden house was
built approximately-25 feet northeast of the store along the
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7. Physical appearance (cont. p. 2)

same facade line. Entered by a door on the left side of its
facade, the two-room plan has a center chimney with two fireplaces
The remainder of the partition wall created by the chimney is
occupied by a narrow stair at the front of the house. This

house type, usually associated with New England, is unusual in
Central Jersey.

The third phase of construction, datable on the. basls of
detailing between 1790 and 1825, plugged the gap between the

two earlier structures with what is basically a two-bay side-
hall house with double parlors. The two room are serviced by
back-to-back corner fireplaces. Paneling around these and a
paneled corner cupboard remain in place. The simple open-

string stair leads to an upper hall sheathed with vertical

beaded boarding, on which traces of the original paint remain.

2) Van Dyke House . Across the Harbourton/Rocktown Road

from the former store, this simple five-bay central hall

hous e of the late eighteenth century was originally an inn or
tavern. Simple detailing, including Federal-style carpentry
fireplaces and four-unit paneled doors flanking the back kitchen
| fireplace, show the concern for basic design and straightforward
craftsmanship. Original six-over-six sash remains in the

second floor windows, while the nine-over -six of the first
floor, replaced by Victorian sash, has been relegated to the

east side of the large white barn on the property.

3) Brewer House. Although this is the most altered of the
buildings in Harbourton, it still retains its basic configuration
as a five-bay, one-room deep late-eighteenth to early-nineteenth
century Federal house. Some original woodwork still remains in
the two first floor living rooms, one of which retains vernacular
Federal detailing around the fireplace! “Inségctién'of”thé rafters
of the rear wing reveals that the second floo;ﬂand roof, at least,
are of later date than the rest of the house, /whthough the first
floor of this section, with its large fireplacé, may be contemp-
oraneous with the front section.

In any event, the house plays a vital spatial role at this

T corner. In scale with the other buildings in the community, it,
like the store building, locks in the configuration of the
T-shape town plan. Without it, Harbourton would be open and
exposed, rather than a self-contained settlement.

4) Community Church. The present Carpenter Gothic structure
replaced an earlier church, a feature of Harbourton since at
least the 1830s. A straightforward rectangle, without spire or
cupola, it is equally straightforward in construction and de-

(cont ) GPO 921.724
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7. Physical appearance (cont. p. 3)
tailing. The chief ornaments of the facade are an oculus in
the gable and a pinted-arched door and flanking windows with
sturdy moldings. A small modern storm vestibule has been
placed before the door. The windows are repeated along the
sides of the building. Inside, the original sturdy pews remain
and original kerosene lamps in metal backet sconces are attached
to the walls.
5) Errickson House. About 1/10 of a mile southwest of the
junction of the two roads, set back some 150 feet, is a
msonry bank house of three sections. On the front part of
its property, a small twentieth-century bungalow, the only
intrusion of a later date in the district, has been built. How-
ever it is small, low in scale, and somewhat hidden by a grove
of trees. The original section of the house is now the right-
hand section oftthe center block. In plan and construction,
it is similar to the 1768 section of the Harbourton store.
The first floor consists of one large room with a fireplace
occupying almost the entire side wall, with indications of
a corner fireplace above. Behind it, a basement passage holds
the massive support for a scond corner fireplace. The facade
of this, and the adjoining section, exhibit, as does the store,
a high watertable, segmental arches over the lower openings,
and unusually large, roughly shaped stones giving the effect
of quoins at the corners. The small shed perch is, of course,
a mpdern addition. Interior construction in the oldest portion
of the house consists of heavy chamfered oak beams and interior
walls of clay mixed with straw. The construction of the left-
hand section, two rooms over two with corner fireplaces, 1s
somewhat lighter.

A small, square stone springhouse with shingled roof
still functions alongs a little stream in front of the Er-
rickson House, between it and the twentieth-century bungalow.

5. Location of Surveys
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Harbourton Historic District is a remarkably intact
surviving example of the "crossroads" towns that once:
served central New Jersey's agricultural communities. Typi-
cally these towns consisted of store, church, tavern and
perhaps school. Although the buildings in Harbourton have,
with the exception of the church, ceasdd to serve their
original functions, they preserve the compact grouping of
such a settlement, isolated from, and yet in close contact
with the surrounding fields and farms.

The buildings themselves are typical, if not outstanding
champleé, of the vernacular traditions of the area in the
last half of the eighteenth century and the first half of
the nineteenth. 1In themselves, each is evocative of the
forms of early rural life in New Jersey. Together, in
their human scale and close spatial relationships, they
present an easily read picture of the pace and style of
life in a small rural community of an earlier era.

The security of this town depends upon the retention
of this intimate human scale, as defined by such factors
as the narrow roads, the small sizes of the buildings and
their proximity one to another.
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